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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | have pleasure in presenting the annual report and the audited
consolidated results of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2008.

Investment Portfolios
For the year under review, the Group has mainly engaged in the following investment projects:

(1) investment in securities and equity-linked products;

(2) investment in land development; and

(3) investment in the business of confectionery production

These investments are expected to bring to the Group steady returns and possible capital appreciations.

Business Review and Prospects

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special general meeting held on 26 February 2008, 34,896,400
shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company were issued on 18 March 2008 by way of an Open
Offer to qualifying shareholders on the basis of one offer share for every two consolidated shares held (the “Open
Offer”).

The Group intends to strengthen its financial position by the Open Offer, which will enable the Company to expand
its capital base. In addition, the Open Offer allows the qualifying shareholders to maintain their respective pro
rata shareholdings in the Company and participate in the future growth and development of the Company. The
Directors therefore consider that the Open Offer is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole. The Board intends to apply the net proceeds for future investment to achieve long-term capital appreciation
of its assets primarily through equity and equity-related investments.

On 24 July 2008, the Company entered into a placing agreement with Baron Capital Limited, the placing agent, for
the placing of 20,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company.

The Directors consider that it is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole to raise further
capital from the equity market by way of the placing in order to enhance the capital base of the Company as well
as to strengthen the cash flow of the Company. The net proceeds has been used as a general working capital for
the Group.

2008 was a difficult year as compared to 2007. We are still cautious about prospects in 2009. Though the United
States economic and financial difficulties have a global impact, the economic impact on the Greater China region
should not be severe since this region enjoys huge surpluses and is able to rely on domestic consumption and
investment for economic growth. Stock market performance and investor sentiment are however another matters.
We should prepare for a period of depressed investor psychology and diminished appetite for investment risk,
particularly if negative news continues to flow from the United States. The Board still believes that the business
environment will remain challenging and highly competitive and hopes both the global and Hong Kong economies
will soon recover from the difficult time and continue to be growing steadily.
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The Group will continue to identify and pursue any investment opportunities and manage the existing investments
in accordance with the Company’s investment objective and policy of achieving long term capital appreciation and
growth in profits. The Board believes that the Group will continue to evaluate potential investments with a view of
gaining high investment returns and yields for our shareholders.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Operations of the Group are generally financed through internal cash resources. As at 31 December 2008, cash and
bank balances of the Group were approximately HK$78 million. With cash and other current assets of approximately
HK$144 million as at 31 December 2008, the Group has sufficient financial resources to satisfy its commitments
and working capital requirements.

Use of Proceeds
The net proceeds received from the Open Offer were approximately HK$35 million and have been fully applied for
the investment in listed securities in Hong Kong in 2008.

The actual and intended applications of the net proceeds are consistent with the reasons for the Open Offer as set
out in the prospectus of the Company dated 27 February 2008.

Capital Structure
During the year, the share capital structure of the Company has been changed with details shown in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

Remuneration policies for the employees and the directors are reviewed by the Group in accordance with the
market situation and their performance from time to time. No director or executive is involved in dealing his own
remuneration. In addition to salary payments, the Company has participated in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Scheme
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the Group and its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of their
monthly relevant income.

On behalf of the Board

CHEUK Yuk Lung
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2008.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the
holding of equity or equity-related investments and the provision of management services to these investee

companies.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the state of affairs of the Group and the

Company at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 19 to 21.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial

statements.

Subsidiaries and Associates
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and the Group’s principal associates as at 31 December 2008 are

set out in notes 14 to 15 to the financial statements respectively.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial

statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on

page 82.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive directors

Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin

Cheuk Yuk Lung

Tsui Yee Ni (resigned on 1 July 2008)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

Independent non-executive directors
Yan Mou Keung, Ronald
Chan Fai Yue, Leo

Chan Siu Wing, Raymond

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Yan Mou Keung, Ronald and Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The other

directors shall remain in office.

Each independent non-executive director has, pursuant to the rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed that
he is independent of the Company. The Company considers that they are independent. The term of office of
each independent non-executive director is for a period of three years until 30 December 2010 subject to the
requirement that one-third of all the directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting

pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company.

Biographical Details of Directors

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin, aged 64, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in 2006 and was
then appointed as the Chairman of the Company in 2007 and is a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Lam is the managing director of Golden Resources Development International Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lam is also an independent non-executive director of
Regal Portfolio Management Limited, the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust, a Hong Kong collective
investment scheme authorized under section 104 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the units of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam is a director of and wholly owns Favor Hero Investments
Limited (substantial shareholder of the Company). Mr. Lam holds a master degree in business administration from
University of California, Berkerly, U.S.A.. Mr. Lam has extensive experience in financial management and investment

planning.

Mr. Cheuk Yuk Lung, aged 43, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in 2004 and is the
managing director of the Company. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheuk has extensive

professional experience in management, finance, accounting and auditing fields.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yan Mou Keung, Ronald, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in 2001 and is a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Yan is also
an independent non-executive director of China Investment Fund Company Limited (substantial shareholder of the
Company), a company incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability and the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yan has more than 19 years of experience in running retail fashions. Mr.
Yan is the Director of Art Concept International Culture Studies Foundation Funds. He is also the Hon Life President
of Tsimshatsui Kai Fong Welfare Association, Vice President of HK Island/Northern District Scout Association, Hong
Kong, Hon Life President of Artiste Training Alumni Association, the President of Pragmatic Kwon-Do and the

Chairman of Chung Hop Pai, Lau Kan Tung Chinese Martial Arts Association.

Mr. Chan Fai Yue, Leo, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in
2001 and is a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of Golden Resources Development International Limited and Datronix Holdings
Limited, companies incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of invaluable experience in Hong Kong stock market and
manufacturing industry. During his early years in Japan, he exposed in trading and finance fields. He is a director of

a paint manufacturing company in Bangkok. Mr. Chan is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in 2004 and is a member of the audit committee of the Company. He is currently the Chief Operating
Officer of Chinachem Group. Mr. Chan is the executive director of ENM Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of Cardlink Technology Group Limited and Intelli-Media
Group (Holdings) Limited, companies incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability and the shares of which
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange. He gained his bachelor degree in
economics from University of Sydney in 1986 and is qualified as certified practising accountants in both Australia
and Macau. Mr. Chan is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Chan has over 17 years of professional experience in accounting, taxation and business consulting with various

accountancy, consultancy and trustee companies.

Senior Management

The Company is being managed by its investment manager, Sinox Fund Management Limited (“SINOX"), pursuant
to the terms of the written management agreement. The executive directors are closely involved in and responsible
for the activities of the Company. The board of directors considered that the Company’s senior management

comprises the executive directors.
Directors’ Service Contract

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company which cannot be terminated by the Company within

one year without payment of compensation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors and any of their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
Percentage of

issued share

Personal Family Corporate Total capital of the
Name of Director Interests* Interests” Interests’ Interests Company
Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin — — 65,120,710 65,120,710 52.23%

(Note (a))

* Beneficial owner
+ Interests of spouse
# Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies controlled by it
Notes:

(a) The shares were held by Favor Hero Investments Limited, a company which was wholly owned by Mr. Lam Kwing
Wai, Alvin as disclosed in the “Substantial Shareholders” below. Mr. Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin was therefore deemed
to be interested in 65,120,710 shares held by Favor Hero Investments Limited.

(b) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 26 February 2008, every ten shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
have been consolidated into one share of HK$0.10 each of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their associates of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as recorded in the register that required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing

Rules.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate and neither the directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their spouses or

children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Mr. Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin, a director of the Company, has an interest of 80% in SINOX. Pursuant to Rule 21.13 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
SINOX is a connected person of the Company and, accordingly, the investment management agreement entered
into between the Company and SINOX constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under the Listing

Rules.

Details of the directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business are set out in the

“Connected Transactions” below.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,

whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Connected Transactions

On 31 August 2007, the Company entered into agreement with SINOX for a period of three years commencing
from 1 September 2007 to 31 August 2010 (the “Agreement”) unless either party provides written termination
notice of at least six months to the other and shall be on the same terms and conditions of the agreement dated
27 April 2006 (the "Last Agreement”) except that (i) the calculation of the amount of the management fee payable
to SINOX from the Company has been revised from 0.75 per cent per annum of the consolidated net asset value
of the Company to 1.90 per cent per annum of the consolidated net asset value of the Company and (ii) the tenor
has been revised from the period from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2009 to the period from 1 September 2007 to
31 August 2010. The Agreement superseded the Last Agreement and become the latest investment management

agreement entered into between the Company and SINOX.

The amount of the management fee payable to SINOX in accordance with the Last Agreement was calculated
based on 0.75 percent per annum of the consolidated net asset value of the Company and is now revised to 1.90
percent per annum of the consolidated net asset value of the Company during the duration of the Agreement
after discussion between SINOX and the Board of the Company by reason that the value of the assets of the
Group has been drastically increased in the past year and will be expected to increase under the current favourable
economic growth and stock market performance in both the PRC and Hong Kong and that the Group is evaluating
some potential investment projects in the PRC with a view of gaining favourable investment returns and yields
for the shareholders of which SINOX will be required to involve more time and effort in the management and
administrative services including but not limited to the performance of the feasibility studies and financial analysis
of the relevant potential investment projects in the PRC when comparing with its previous scope of works provided

with the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, SINOX shall receive from the Company a management fee of 1.90 percent

per annum of the consolidated net asset value of the Company payable at the end of each month.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

In view of the financial tsunami and the difficult and uncertain economic environment, the Company agreed to pay
and SINOX agreed to receive a temporarily adjusted monthly management fee at a fix sum of HK$250,000 for a

period of 12 months until June 2009.

The directors, including the Company’s independent non-executive directors, Mr. Yan Mou Keung, Ronald, Mr.
Chan Fai Yue, Leo and Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond, considered that the Agreement is in the best interests of
the Group and was entered into on normal commercial terms, in the ordinary course of business of the Company
and that the rate of the management fee is fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are

concerned.

The Board has also confirmed that a letter pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules has been issued to the

Board by the auditors of the Company.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2008, the following persons had interests and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long positions in shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Percentage
of issued
share
capital
Personal Family Corporate Total of the
Name Interests’ Interests” Interests’ Interests Company Notes
Favor Hero Investments Limited — — 65,120,710 65,120,710 52.23% 1
Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin — — 65,120,710 65,120,710 52.23% 1
China Investment Fund Company
Limited 3,696,000 — 7,500,000 11,196,000 8.98% 2
Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited — — 12,000,000 12,000,000 9.62% 3
* Beneficial owner
+ Interests of spouse
# Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies controlled by it
Notes:
1. Favor Hero Investments Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin. Mr. Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin was

therefore deemed to be interested in 65,120,710 shares held by Favor Hero Investments Limited.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. Delux Famous Business Limited held 7,500,000 shares and was a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Investment
Fund Company Limited. China Investment Fund Company Limited was therefore deemed to be interested in
7,500,000 shares held by Delux Famous Business Limited.

3. Sinofame International Limited held 12,000,000 shares and was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited. Cosmopolitan International Holdings was therefore deemed to be
interested in 12,000,000 shares held by Sinofame International Limited.

4. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 26 February 2008, every ten shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
have been consolidated into one share of HK$0.10 each of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the directors were not aware of any other person who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
that required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of the share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meetings of any other members of the Group.

Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at
the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company

as required under the Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares of the Company
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during

the year.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws, or the Company Act (1981) of

Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Auditors
On 1 November 2006, RSM Nelson Wheeler tendered their resignation as the auditors of the Company and then
H.H. Liu & Co., C.P.A. was appointed as auditors of the Company by the Board on the same date to fill the casual

vacancy.

H. H. Liu & Co., C.P.A. retires and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LEE Yip Wah, Peter
Secretary

Hong Kong, 23 March 2009
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The Group is dedicated to maintaining a good credible framework of corporate governance with a view to being

transparent, open and accountable to our shareholders.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”)

contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code on corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Company complied with the Code except for a single deviation. According to code provision
E1.2 of the Code, the Chairman of the Board should attend the annual general meeting. Due to an unexpected
business commitment, Mr. Lam King Wai, Alvin, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company (the “"AGM") held on 19 June 2008. Mr. Cheuk Yuk Lung, the managing director,
was elected in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, to act as the chairman of the AGM and answered
questions raised by shareholders together with the members of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration

Committee.

The Board
Composition
The Board consists of three Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”), one of
whom namely Mr. Chan Siu Wing, Raymond has the appropriate professional accounting experience and expertise.

The names and biographical details of each Director are disclosed on pages 7 to 8 of this Annual Report.

Each INED has, pursuant to the rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed he is independent of the Company and
the Company also considers that they are independent. The current term of office of each INED is for a period of
three years until 30 December 2010 subject to the requirement that one-third of all the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company. Save as disclosed in
“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 7 to 8, there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or

other material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

Function

The Board is responsible both for how the Company is managed and the Company’s direction. Approval of the
Board is required for the strategy of the Group, major acquisition and disposal, major capital investment, dividend
policy, appointment and retirement of Directors, remuneration policy and other major operational and financial
matters. Day-to-day operations of the Group are taken up by the Company’s management and the Company’s

investment manager.
The Board has established schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board for its decision and those reserved

for the management. The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to

the needs of the Company.
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The Board held four regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly interval during the year 2008. Additional

board meetings were held when necessary. Due notice and board papers were given to all directors prior to the
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Code. Details of individual attendance of Directors are set out

in the table below:

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings in 2008

Number of meetings 12

Executive Director

Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin 9/12
Cheuk Yuk Lung 12/12
Tsui Yee Ni (resigned on 1/7/2008) 6/7
INEDs

Yan Mou Keung, Ronald 6/12
Chan Fai Yue, Leo 7/12
Chan Siu Wing, Raymond 7/12

The Board has established procedure to enable directors, upon reasonable request, to seek independent

professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expanse

Board Committees
To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its expertise, there are two Board committees namely, the

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee formed under the Board, with each performing different functions.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs.

The role and function of the Audit Committee include:

— to serve as a focal point for communication between other Directors and the auditors in respect of the
duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, audits, and such other matters as the Board
may determine from time to time.

— to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibility by providing an independent review and supervision of

financial reporting, by satisfying themselves as to the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group and

the adequacy of the audits.
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— to review the appointment of auditors on an annual basis including the review of the audit scope and

approval of the audit fees.

— to review the annual and interim financial statements prior to their approval by the Board, and recommend

application of accounting policies and changes to the financial reporting requirements.

— to ensure continuing auditor objectivity and to safeguard independence of the Company’s auditors.

Set out below is the summary of work done in year 2008:

— to review of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 and for the six months ended 30
June 2008;

— to review of the effectiveness of the internal control system;

— to review of the auditors’ statutory audit plan and the letters of representation; and

— to consider and approve the 2008 audit fees and audit work.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year. Details of individual attendance of its members are set

out in the table below:

Attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings in 2008

Number of meetings 2
INED

Chan Fai Yue, Leo (Chairman of the Committee) 2/2
Yan Mou Keung, Ronald 1/2
Chan Siu Wing, Raymond 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, comprising two INEDs and the Chairman of the Company
appointed by the Board, which meets at least once a year. The role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include formulation of the remuneration policy, review and recommending to the Board the annual remuneration

policy, and determination of the remuneration of the Executive Directors.
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Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration Committee done in year 2008:

— to review of the remuneration policy for 2008/2009;

— to review of the remuneration of the Executive Directors and the INEDs; and

— to review of the annual share option policy.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during 2008. Details of individual attendance of its members are

set out in the table below:

Attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meetings in 2008

Number of meetings 1

Executive directors

Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin (Chairman of the Committee) 171
INEDs

Yan Mou Keung, Ronald 11
Chan Fai Yue, Leo 11

Other information
The Board has not established a nomination committee. Ms. Tsui Yee Ni resigned as director on 1 July 2008. There

was no removal of director and appointment of new director during the year.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or deposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not absolute assurance

against material errors, losses or fraud.
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Internal audit has been conducted by the investment manager, Sinox Fund Management Limited (“Sinox”) for the

Company and its subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly controlled entities. Sinox is responsible for the
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls so as to provide assurance that key business
and operational risks are identified and managed. The work carried out by Sinox will ensure the internal controls
are carried out appropriately and functioning as intended. Sinox will report to the Board with its findings and make

recommendations to improve the internal control of the Group.

During the year, the Board together with Sinox reviewed the internal control procedures and risk management

system of the Group and noted that there was no significant weakness.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the codes of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors and by relevant employees (as defined in the Code). All Directors have confirmed, following specific

enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year 2008.

Auditors’ Remuneration
During the year, the fees paid to the Company’'s Auditors, H.H. Liu & Co., C.P.A. amounted to HK$138,000 in
respect of audit and taxation services. In respect of non-audit services, the fees paid to the Company’s Auditors in

relation to the professional services rendered for the Open Offer of the Company amounted to HK$25,000.

Directors’ Responsibility for Preparing the Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the Financial Statements. The Statement of
the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the Financial Statements is set out in the Auditors’ Report on

page 18.

Shareholder Communication
The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our shareholders with detailed information about the

Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key
business imperatives. These include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements and
circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been included in circular of the Company accompanying notice convening

general meeting and has been read out by the chairman at the general meeting.

At the 2008 annual general meeting, a separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of Directors. Except for the Chairman of the Board of Directors who was
unable to attend the meeting, all other directors including the members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration

Committee attended the 2008 Annual General Meeting to answer questions of shareholders.
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Ho Ho LIU & CO., Certified Public Accountants

To the shareholders of
Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 19 to 81, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

H. H. Liu & Co.
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Note HK$ HK$
Revenue
Dividend income from investment securities and other investments/
financial assets, listed 5,535,503 3,745,026
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (10,142,991) 13,221,457
(4,607,488) 16,966,483
Other revenue 5 9,129,379 45,991,651
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (19,835,040) 30,078,180
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of derivative financial instruments (116,233) 2,861,302
Fair value (loss)/gain on investments held for trading (657,875) 1,693,884
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments — 1,181,631
(16,087,257) 98,773,131
Gain on disposal of an associate 7 247,456 —
Written off of an associate (312) —
Investment management fees (5,400,000) (3,829,827)
Provision for impairment losses 8 (23,209,698) 5,990,815
Finance costs 9 (75,120) (7,994)
Other operating expenses (6,117,335) (13,071,264)
Staff costs (1,323,368) (1,303,448)
Share of associates’ results (1,496,051) 64,457,198
(Loss)/Profit before taxation 6 (53,461,685) 151,008,611
Income tax expense 11 (97,774) (769,698)
(Loss)/Profit for the year 27 (53,559,459) 150,238,913
(Loss)/Earnings per share 13
— Basic (49.26 cents) 24.53 cents
— Diluted (47.89 cents) 23.25 cents

The notes on pages 26 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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At 31 December 2008‘

2008 2007
Note HKS$ HK$
Non-current assets
Interests in associates 5 9,943,299 11,136,579
Held-to-maturity investments 16 66,805,273 —
Available-for-sale financial assets 17 160,325,179 310,757,986
Other asset 18 150,000 150,000
237,223,751 322,044,565
Current assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 17 37,689,717 47,935,200
Derivative financial instruments 19 — 1,181,631
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 20 237,125 2,676,600
Other receivables 21 28,715,692 50,558,439
Cash with brokers 34 30,962,280 10,008,519
Cash and bank balances 34 46,877,963 119,952,702
144,482,777 232,313,091
Less: Current liabilities
Other payables 23 337,780 1,789,061
Interest-bearing borrowings 24 6,064,618 —
Due to Sinox Fund Management Limited 25 240,404 648,821
Provision for taxation 3,801,980 4,057,860
10,444,782 6,495,742
Net current assets 134,037,995 225,817,349
NET ASSETS 371,261,746 547,861,914
Capital and reserves
Share capital 26 12,468,920 6,479,280
Reserves 27 358,792,826 541,382,634
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 371,261,746 547,861,914
Net asset value per share 29 298 cents 85 cents

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2009

LAM Kwing Wai, Alvin CHEUK Yuk Lung
Director Director

The notes on pages 26 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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At 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Note HKS$ HK$
Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries 14 90,010,748 90,010,748
Available-for-sale financial assets 17 47,263,053 84,398,309
137,273,801 174,409,057
Current assets
Other receivables 21 3,301,549 6,383,557
Due from a subsidiary 22 105,926,454 5,112,194
Cash with brokers 34 697 815,261
Cash and bank balances 34 28,561,880 71,189,882
137,790,580 83,500,894
Less: Current liabilities
Other payables 23 331,300 252,766
Due to Sinox Fund Management Limited 25 240,404 648,821
571,704 901,587
Net current assets 137,218,876 82,599,307
NET ASSETS 274,492,677 257,008,364
Capital and reserves
Share capital 26 12,468,920 6,479,280
Reserves 27 262,023,757 250,529,084
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 274,492,677 257,008,364

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2009

LAM Kwing Wai, Alvin
Director

The notes on pages 26 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHEUK Yuk Lung

Director
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Reserve

Changes in
fair value of
Available-  (Accumulated
Exchange for-sale losses)/
Share  Share option  Contributed fluctuation financial Retained
Share capital premium reserve surplus reserve assets profits Total
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
At 1 January 2007 4319520 169,564,710 — 100,383,317 131,919 8,702,957 (34,007,728) 249,094,695
Increase in fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets — - — — — 97,107,576 - 97,107,576
Realisation of change in
fair value for disposal of
available-for-sale financial
assets — - — — — (4,484.111) - (4,484,111)
Capital and Premium arise from
open offer 2,159,760 — — 26,997,000 — — — 29,156,760
Equity-settled share-based
payment — - 26,880,000 — — — - 26,880,000
Realisation of exchange
fluctuation reserve on
disposal of an investment — — — — (131,919) — — (131,919)
Profit for the year — — — — — — 150,238,913 150,238,913
At 31 December 2007 6,479,280 169,564,710 26,880,000 127,380,317 — 101,326,422 116,231,185 547,861,914
Prior year adjustment
note 27(a) — 26,997,000 —  (26,997,000) — — - —
At 1 January 2008.
as restated 6,479,280 196,561,710 26,880,000 100,383,317 — 101,326,422 116,231,185 547,861,914
Decrease in fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets — — — — —  (196,886,391) —  (196,886,391)
Realisation of change in
fair value for disposal of
available-for-sale financial
assets — - — — — 14,946,770 - 14,946,770
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For the year ended 31 Dece}nbér 2008

Reserve
Changes in
fair value of
Available-  (Accumulated
Exchange for-sale losses)/
Share  Share option  Contributed fluctuation financial Retained
Share capital premium reserve surplus reserve assets profits Total
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$
Capital and Premium arise
from:
— exercise of share option
note 26 (a) 500,000 9,500,000 — - — — — 10,000,000
— open offer note 26 (c) 3,489,640 31,406,760 — — — — — 34,896,400
— share placing
note 26(d) 2,000,000 20,000,000 — - — — — 22,000,000
Exercise of share option — — (15,627,907) — — — — (15,627,907)
Reversal of reserve for share
option — — — 7,627,907 — — — 7,627,907
Release on disposal and written
off of associates — — — — — — 2,512 2,512
Loss for the year — — — — — — (53,559,459) (53,559,459)
At 31 December 2008 12,468,920 257,468,470 11,252,093 108,011,224 —  (80,613,199) 62,674,238 371,261,746

The notes on pages 26 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (53,461,685) 151,008,611
Adjustments for:
Interest on bank deposits (9,735,663) (10,601,201)
Dividend income from investment securities and
other investments/financial assets, listed (5,535,503) (3,745,026)
Gain on disposal of an associate (247,456) —
Written off of an associate 312 —
Provision for impairment losses 23,209,698 (5,990,815)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 19,835,040 (30,078,180)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of derivative financial instruments 116,233 (2,861,302)
Net gain on disposal of structured investments (65,649) —
Amortization of held-to-maturity investments (59,034) —
Share of associates’ results 1,496,051 (64,457,198)
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments — (1,181,631)
OPERATING CASH FLOWS BEFORE MOVEMENTS IN WORKING CAPITAL (24,447,656) 32,093,258
(Increase)/Decrease in amounts due from associated companies (247,456) 15,022,200
Decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,439,475 5,251,454
Decrease/(Increase) in other receivables 6,879,934 (29,507,589)
(Decrease)/Increase in other payables (1,451,281) 1,474,552
(Decrease)/Increase in amount due to Sinox Fund Management Limited (408,417) 505,676
CASH (USED FOR)/GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (17,235,401) 24,839,551
Tax paid (353,654) (11,430,902)
Tax refund — 1,005
NET CASH (OUTFLOWS)/INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (17,589,055) 13,409,654

The notes on pages 26 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007

HKS$ HK$
NET CASH (OUTFLOWS)/INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (17,589,055) 13,409,654
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from investment securities and

other investments/financial assets, listed 5,535,503 3,745,026

Dividends received from an associate — 65,000,000
Interest on bank deposits 9,735,663 10,601,201
Payment for available-for-sale financial assets (119,215,143) (203,417,483)
Payment for associated companies (2,200) (3,742,200)
Payment for held-to-maturity investments (66,746,239) —
Proceeds from disposal of an associate company 249,656 —
Proceeds from disposal of derivative financial instruments 1,065,397 —
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets 69,884,422 125,116,152
NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (99,492,941) (2,697,304)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share 34,896,400 29,156,760
Proceeds from share option 2,000,000 13,760,000
Proceeds from share placement 22,000,000 —
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings (9,535,382) —
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings 15,600,000 —
NET CASH INFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 64,961,018 42,916,760
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (52,120,978) 53,629,110
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR 129,961,221 76,332,111
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR 77,840,243 129,961,221
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash with brokers 30,962,280 10,008,519
Cash and bank balances 46,877,963 119,952,702

77,840,243 129,961,221

The notes on pages 26 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the

year ended 31 December 2008

General Information

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporation information of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the
holding of equity or equity-related investments and the provision of management services to the investee

companies.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (the “HKFRSs”) (which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (the “HKASs”)
and interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following new standard, amendment and

interpretations (“new HKFRSs"”) issued by the “HKICPA”, which are effective for the Group’s financial year

beginning 1 January 2008.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assets, Minimum

Funding Requirements and their Interaction
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(a) HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 (Amendments) — Reclassification of Financial Assets
The amendments allow reclassifications of financial assets out of the fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) category or available-for-sale (AFS) category. Under these amendments, for those debt
securities and loans and receivables that they no longer intends to hold for trading purpose may be
reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss category or available-for-sale category. Provided
that certain criteria are met and ongoing fair value related disclosures and additional disclosures

required under HKFRS 7 are made.

(b) HK(IFRIC) — INT 11 — HKFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions
It clarifies that certain types of transaction are accounted for as equity-settled or cash-settled
transactions under HKFRS 2. It also addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions
involving two or more entities within one group. The Group will apply HK(IFRIC) INT 11 for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008, but it is not expected to have any impact on the

Group's financial statements.

(c) HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 — Service Concession Arrangements
It applies to companies that participate in service concession arrangements and provides guidance
on the accounting by operators in public-to-private service concession arrangements. As the Group
has not involved in service concession arrangements, HK(IFRIC) INT 12 is not relevant to the Group’s

operations.

(d) HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 — HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assets, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction
The Interpretation addresses the question of “when should refunds or reductions in future
contributions be considered to be “available” in accordance with paragraph 58 of HKAS 19, Employee
benefits”. That is, paragraph 58 of HKAS 19, also referred to as the "“asset ceiling”, limits the
amount of a defined benefit plan surplus that can be recognised by the employer as an asset. The

Interpretation is not relevant to the Group’s operations.
The adoption of the above new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and financial position for

the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has

been required.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
The Group has not early applied the following new standards or interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these standards or

interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs'

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements®

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Cost’

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements®

HKFRS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation’

HKFRS 39 (Amendment) Eligible hedged items’

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity
or Associate’

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations’

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’

HK (IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HK (IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate’

HK (IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation®

HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners>

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. Principal Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of

discounts and sales related taxes.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is

recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an

entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances, income and expenses within the Group are

eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently

exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They

are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective
of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group'’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised

directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where

necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.

(d) Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not control

or joint control, over its management, including participation in the financial and operating decisions.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held
for sale (in which case it is accounted for under HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations) or when the investment is designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition or is classified as held for trading (in which case it is accounted for under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Under the equity method, investments
in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or

constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available

for immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the

assets (“disposal groups”) previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Jointly controlled entities
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control and over which none of the participating parties

has unilateral control.

A jointly controlled entity is a corporation, partnership, or other entity in which two or more venturers
have an interest, under a contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the entity. The
Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the equity method. The Group’s
interests in jointly controlled entities include the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly
controlled entities. The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses of jointly controlled entities

is included in the consolidated income statement.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they

are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's

interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units and is tested annually for impairment. In respect of associates or jointly
controlled entities, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the interest

in the associate or jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an investment in an associate or a

jointly controlled entity is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Goodwill (Continued)
On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, an impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the determination

of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets
The Group’'s financial assets are classified into one of the four categories, including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time

frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate,

a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets designated as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or

losses.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial assets held for

trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

— it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group

manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking ; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at

FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or
— it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and

HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)
— Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes

any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

— Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade receivables, loan
receivables, other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, amount
due from directors and finance lease receivables) are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy in

respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

— Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. The Group designated certain debt
securities as held-to-maturity investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy in

respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

— Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or
not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. In addition to equity investments, the Group has also designated certain

debt securities as available-for-sale financial assets.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)
— Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,

the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value

of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past, observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event

occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

36 | Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited



3.

For l:he year enc}ed 31 December 2008

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified

into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the

financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other than those financial liabilities

designated as at FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in net gains or losses.

— Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial liabilities held for
trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near future;

or

— it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group

manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
— Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as

at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

— the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and
HKSA 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss

includes any interest paid on the financial liability.

— Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including bank and other borrowings, trade payables and other
payables) are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest

method.

— Convertible loan notes
Convertible loan notes issued by the Company that contain both the liability and
conversion option components are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity

instruments is an equity instrument.
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Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible loan notes (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference between
the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible loan notes and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the conversion option for the holder to convert

the loan notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible loan notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible loan notes is carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible loan notes equity reserve until the conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible loan notes equity reserve will be transferred
to share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible loan notes equity reserve will be released to retained profits. No

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan notes are allocated to
the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability component and amortized over the period of the convertible loan notes

using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,

issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
— Derivative financial instruments and hedging
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative
is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the

recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

— Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value

recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of fixed-rate bank
borrowings (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions for foreign

currency exposure (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

At the inception of the hedge relationship the entity documents the relationship between
the hedging instrument and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used
in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
the hedged item.

— Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value
hedges are recorded in profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged item that is attributable to the hedged risk. The adjustment
to the carrying amount of the hedged item for which the effective interest is used is
amortised to profit or loss as soon as an adjustment exists. The adjustment is based on a

recalculated effective interest rate at the date of the amortisation begins.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Hedge accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedge (Continued)
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedge relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for

hedge accounting.

Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges are deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the

ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss as other gains or losses.

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged
item is recognised in profit or loss. However, when the forecast transaction that is
hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the
gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in

the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedge relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit
or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain

or loss that was deferred in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow
hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of
the hedge is recognised in equity in the translation reserve. The gain or loss relating to

the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss as other gains or losses.

Gains and losses deferred in the translation reserve are recognised in profit or loss on

disposal of the foreign operation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

3.

Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire
or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is recoginised in profit or loss. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset

and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial

liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Golf club membership

Golf club membership is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. The carrying amount of

individual golf club membership is reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether the fair

value has declined below the carrying amount. When a decline other than temporary has occurred,

the carrying amount of such golf club membership is reduced to its fair value. The amount of the

reduction is recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

()

(k)

(M

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatory redeemable preference shares are classified as

liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes,) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or
reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received (net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects) is included in equity

attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period

of the lease.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is

the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equity instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation difference
on non-monetary items, such as equity instruments classified as available-for-sale financial

assets, are included as reserve in equity.

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation

currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that balance sheet;

— incomes and expenses for each consolidated income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and

expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and
— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of the gain

or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as

assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement plans, including contributions payable
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as expenses in

the consolidated income statement as incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date,

and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow is remote.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities. Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate prevailing for the year based on the

assessable profit for the year less allowable losses, if any, brought forward.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)
(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit

will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the

Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(q) Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measured by reference to the fair value of the share options granted. The fair
values of the goods or services received are recognised as expenses immediately, unless the goods or
service qualify for recognition as assets. Corresponding adjustment has been made to equity (share

options reserve).

(r) Events after the balance sheet date
Post-year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the balance
sheet date or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events
and are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting

events are disclosed in the notes when material.

(s) Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services
that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A
geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating

in other economic environments.
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

(t) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:

— controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group;
— has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or

— has joint control over the Group;
(ii) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Company or its parent company;
(iii)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) and (ii);

(iv)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, the individual

referred to in (ii) or (iii); and

(v) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Group, or of

any entity that is a related party of the Group.

4. Segmental Information
No business and geographical segment information are presented as over 90% of the Group’s revenue was
derived from the sales of equity-related investments and dividend received, which were transacted in Hong

Kong.

5. Other Revenue

Group

2008 2007

HK$ HK$
Interest on bank deposits 9,735,663 10,601,201
Gain on future trading — 672,777
Loss on disposal of foreign currency (1,872,472) —
Amortization on held-to-maturity investments 59,034 —
Interest income 1,026,454 278,777
Other income 180,700 1,438,896
Bad debt recovery (Note a) — 33,000,000

9,129,379 45,991,651
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5.

Other Revenue (Continued)
Note:

(a) Bad debt recovery represents the recovery in the last year for the balance of consideration received in
relation to the disposal of an associated company, namely, Shanghai White Cat Company Limited. A
provision for non-recoverable amount which had been made in previous year was written back accordingly.

(Loss)/Profit for the Year

(Loss)/Profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Auditors’ remuneration 138,000 138,000
Amortization of other receivables 114,725 —
Provision for impairment losses 23,209,698 (5,990,815)
Operating lease payments on land and buildings — 938
Retirement benefit cost 52,694 55,773
Interest on bank deposits (9,735,663) (10,601,201)
Exchange loss/(gains), net 69,150 (128,273)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investments held for trading 657,875 (1,693,884)
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments — (1,181,631)
Gain on Disposal of an Associate
Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Gain on disposal of an associate 247,456 —

It represents the gain arising from the Group’s disposal of its 22% equity interest in an associate namely,

Creative Candy International Limited, previously known as Loyal Brilliant Limited.
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8. Provision for Impairment Losses

Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Impairment loss on associate 1,501,529 1,554,644
Impairment loss on other loan (Note a) 14,962,813 —
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment (Note b) 8,300,000 —
Reversal of impairment loss (1,554,644) (7,545,459)

23,209,698 (5,990,815)

Notes:

(a) The impairment loss on other receivables represented the loan due from a borrower, who is an independent
third party, namely “Eurotarget Investment Ltd”. Legal action had been taken against the borrower for
repayment of the debts and positive judgement had been obtained from the court. However, objective
evidence shows that the borrower may have significant financial difficulty. In view of these, a provision for
the full amount of debt overdue has been recognized in the income statement.

(b) Impairment loss has been made against an investment on available-for-sale equity securities (note 17). The
Group owns 15% ordinary share capital of a company, namely “Golden Chain Development Ltd”, a company
invested in land development with cost of investment amounted to HK$12,120,000. The discount rate at
1.84% per annum is used for estimation of the recoverable amount. As the result, the impairment loss for
the investment approximately to HK$8,300,000 has been provided in current year’s income statement.

0. Finance Costs

Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Bank charges 75,120 7,994
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

10. Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of fees payable to directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Fees:
Executive directors 186,000 216,000
Non-executive directors 160,000 160,000
Other emoluments — —
Retirement benefits scheme contributions:
Executive directors 9,300 10,800
Non-executive directors — =
355,300 386,800
Emoluments breakdown of each of the directors for the year ended 31 December 2008:
Retirement
benefits
Directors’ scheme
fees contributions Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
Executive directors
Cheuk Yuk Lung 96,000 4,800 100,800
Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin 60,000 3,000 63,000
Tsui Yee Ni * 30,000 1,500 31,500
186,000 9,300 195,300
Non-executive directors
Yan Mou Keung, Ronald 60,000 — 60,000
Chan Siu Wing, Raymond 60,000 — 60,000
Chan Fai Yue, Leo 40,000 — 40,000
160,000 — 160,000
346,000 9,300 355,300

* The executive director was resigned on 1 July 2008.
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10. Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director of the Company waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments during the year.
During the year, no share option was granted to the directors.

Emoluments breakdown of each of the directors for the year ended 31 December 2007:

Retirement
benefits
Directors’ scheme
fees  contributions Total
HK$ HK$ HK$
Executive directors
Cheuk Yuk Lung 96,000 4,800 100,800
Lam Kwing Wai, Alvin 60,000 3,000 63,000
Tsui Yee Ni * 60,000 3,000 63,000
216,000 10,800 226,800
Non-executive directors
Yan Mou Keung, Ronald 60,000 — 60,000
Chan Siu Wing, Raymond 60,000 — 60,000
Chan Fai Yue, Leo 40,000 — 40,000
160,000 — 160,000
376,000 10,800 386,800
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

10. Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group for the year include:

2008 2007
Number of directors 1 1
Number of employees 4 4

Details of the directors’ emoluments are presented above.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining highest paid non-director individuals

are as follows:

2008 2007

HK$ HK$

Fees, basic salaries and other benefits in kind 924,674 871,675
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 43,394 44,973
968,068 916,648

The emoluments paid to each highest paid non-director individual during the year fall within the band
of HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or any

of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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1.

Income Tax Expense

For l:he year enc}ed 31 December 2008

Group
2008 2007
HK$ HK$
Company and subsidiaries
— Hong Kong profits tax 147,774 2,890,775
— Qver provision in previous years (50,000) (2,121,077)
97,774 769,698

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the individual companies comprising the Group

profits arising in Hong Kong for the year.

Taxation for other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Reconciliation between taxation and tax at the applicable rate:

has assessable

Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
(Loss)/profit before taxation (53,461,685) 151,008,611
Tax at the applicable tax rate (8,821,178) 26,426,506
Tax effect of income that is not taxable in determining taxable profit (3,202,434) (28,046,494)

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining

taxable profit 4,424,847 22,376
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised (390) —
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 7,746,929 4,488,387
Over provision of tax payable (50,000) (2,121,077)
Taxation charge 97,774 769,698

No provision for deferred income tax has been made in the consolidated financial statements as the tax

effect of temporary differences is immaterial to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

12. (Loss)/Profit Attributable to Shareholders
The loss attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2008 is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$4,276,831 (2007: profit of HK$19,868,392).

13. (Loss)/Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based on the following data:

Group
2008 2007
HK$ HK$
(Loss)/Earnings
(Loss)/Earnings for the purposes of both basic and diluted
(loss)/earnings per share (53,559,459) 150,238,913
Number of shares
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic
(loss)/earnings per share 108,717,541 612,360,837
Effect of dilutive potential shares — Options 3,118,033 33,890,592
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of diluted
(loss)/earnings per share 111,835,574 646,251,429

The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic (loss)/earnings per share has been adjusted for
the effect of Open Offer.

14. Interests in Subsidiaries

Company
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Unlisted shares, at cost 780 780
Due from a subsidiary 90,009,968 90,009,968

90,010,748 90,010,748
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For l:he year enc}ed 31 December 2008

14. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)
The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and not repayable within the next twelve

months.

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Percentage

of issued

Particulars of share

Place of issued share capital/

incorporation/ capital/registered registered

Name operation capital capital held Principal activities

Directly held by the Company:

Accufocus Investments Limited  British Virgin 100 shares of US$1 100% Investment holding
Islands (“BVI")/ each
Hong Kong

Indirectly held by the Company:

Attentive Investments Limited  BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
each

B2C E-Commerce Group BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
Limited each

Best Policy Management BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
Limited each

Chief Success Management BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
Limited each

Ever Honest Investments BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
Limited each

Founder China Industrial Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% Investment holding
Investments Company HK$1 each
Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

14. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Percentage

of issued

Particulars of share
issued share capital/

capital/registered registered

Name operation capital capital held Principal activities
Indirectly held by the Company: (Continued)
Linkson Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% Dormant
HK$1 each
Founder Industrial Investments Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% Investment holding
(Holdings) Company Limited ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
Genius Choice investments BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
Limited each
GR Investment Holdings Hong Kong 899,900,000 100% Investment holding
Limited ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each
Glorious Bright Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% Money lending
HK$1 each
Home Growth Assets Limited BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
each
GR Investment International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% Dormant
Limited HK$1 each
Rich Concept Investments BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
Limited each
Rich Profits International BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
Limited each

56 | Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited



14.

15.

Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Name operation

Particulars of

issued share

capital/registered

capital

For l:he year enc}ed 31 December 2008

Percentage
of issued
share
capital/
registered

capital held

Principal activities

Indirectly held by the Company: (Continued)

Market Court Resources BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
Limited each
Target Plus Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
each
Contessa Assets Limited BVI/Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Investment holding
each
Interests in Associates
Group
2008 2007
HK$ HK$
Unlisted shares at cost 7,931,669 7,931,981
Share of associates’ results net of dividends received (Note a) (2,036,341) (542,802)
5,895,328 7,389,179

Amounts due from associates

Provision for impairment losses on interests in associates

12,152,516 11,905,060
(8,104,545) (8,157,660)

4,047,971 3,747,400

9,943,299 11,136,579

Note:

(a) During the year 2007, the Group received a dividend of HK$65,000,000 from an associate, Bright Honest
Limited, being distribution of the gain on disposal of the investment properties of the associate’s direct

subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

15. Interests in Associates (Continued)

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free and not repayable within the next twelve

months.

Details of the principal associates, of all of which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Proportion

Particulars of of associates

Place of issued/registered capital
Name incorporation share capital owned Principal activities
Luck Point Investments BVI 200 shares of US$1 35% Investment holding
Limited each

Happy Online Group Limited  BVI 14,000 shares of 33.75% Investment holding
US$1 each

Bright Honest Limited BVI 50,000 shares of 25% Investment holding
US$1 each

Halway Development Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares of 30% Investment holding
HK$1 each

Magic Mark Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 22% Investment holding
HK$1 each

Albert Candy (Shenzhen) Co. PRC HK$17,000,000 22% Manufacturing

Ltd (Note b)

Note:

registered capital

(b) By signing a sales and purchase of share agreement dated 16 September 2008, the Group committed to
dispose the investment at approximately HK$4,296,730. The shares registration is expected to be completed
in 5 years. The unrealized gain has not been made in current year’'s financial statement pending the
finalization of formal procedures for shares transfer.
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16.

a a
c A(C[]]|C]]
For the year ended 31 December 2008
Interests in Associates (Continued)

The summariesed financial information of the Group's share of assets, liabilities, income and results of the

associates based on the unaudited management accounts of the associates are as follows:

2008 2007

HKS$ HK$

Assets 13,576,523 14,860,098

Liabilities (11,845,094) (14,706,684)

Income 123,569 66,207,206

(Loss)/Gain (1,496,051) 63,421,767
Held-to-maturity Investments

2008 2007

HKS$ HK$

Debt securities (Note a) 66,805,273 —

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current assets — —

Non-current assets 66,805,273 —

66,805,273 —

Note:

(a) The debt securities carrying fixed interest rate at 2%-5.5% (2007: Nil) per annum and interest payable

semi-annually, will mature from February 2010 to June 2011 (2007: Nil).
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17.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
Non-current assets
Hong Kong unlisted equity securities,
at cost — 12,120,000 — —
Overseas unlisted equity securities,
at cost 20,885,906 20,885,906 — —
Less: Impairment losses (Note a) (20,885,906) (20,885,906) — —
— 12,120,000 — —
Hong Kong listed equity securities,
at fair value 131,892,440 282,913,969 47,263,053 84,398,309
Fund 18,860,400 — — —
Equity Linked Note 9,572,339 11,700,000 — —
Overseas collateral financial assets,
at cost — 4,024,017 — —
160,325,179 310,757,986 47,263,053 84,398,309
Current assets
Hong Kong listed equity securities,
at fair value 7,954,000 3,985,200 — —
Hong Kong unlisted equity securities,
at cost 12,120,000 4,950,000 — —
Less: Impairment loss (Note b) (8,300,000) — — —
11,774,000 8,935,200 — —
Equity Linked Note 25,509,510 39,000,000 — —
Overseas unlisted equity securities,
at fair value 406,207 — — —
37,689,717 47,935,200 — —
Notes:
(a) Impairment losses have been provided in full for the cost of investment for the unlisted overseas equity
securities.
(b) Impairment loss has been made against an investment in Golden Chain Development Ltd, a company

invested in land development. The Group held 15% of its ordinary share capital (note 8).
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17. Available-for-sale Financial Assets (Continued)

For l:he year enc}ed 31 December 2008

As at 31 December 2008, the carrying amounts of interests in the following available-for-sale financial assets

exceeded 5% of total assets of the Group and the Company:

Dividend
Proportion Directors’ income  Netassets  Unrealised
of investee's Cost and valuation/ received attributable  gain/(loss)
Place of capital advances market  during the tothe taken in the Principal Activities/
Name incorporation owned thereto value year investment accounts  place of operation
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
million million million million million
Golden Resources Bermuda 4.90% 22.20 16.55 1.90 42.48 (5.65) Investment holding/
Development Hong Kong
International Limited
Cosmopolitan International  Cayman Islands 8.39% 31.58 66.79 — 16.11 35.21  Investment holding/
Holdings Limited Hong Kong
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited ~ Hong Kong 0.12% 2714 7.95 1.29 16.23 (19.19)  Investment holding/
Hong Kong
Country Garden Holdings Cayman Islands 0.01% 10.15 1.99 0.32 1.39 (8.16) Property investment/
Co. Limited PRC
China Investment Fund Cayman Islands 1.44% 2157 4.32 — 6.72 (23.25) Investment holding/
Company Limited Hong Kong
HSBC Holdings plc England 0.0010031% 16.09 8.95 0.85 61.17 (7.14)  Banking and financial
services/Asia Pacific
region, Europe, the
Americas, the Middle
East and Africa
Golden Chain Development  Hong Kong 15% 12.12 3.82 — 5.33 (8.30) Investment holding/

Limited (Note b)

Hong Kong
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

17. Available-for-sale Financial Assets (Continued)

Dividend
Proportion Directors’ income  Netassets  Unrealised
of investee’s Cost and valuation/ received  attributable  gain/(loss)
Place of capital advances market  during the tothe taken in the Principal Activities/
Name incorporation owned thereto value year investment accounts  place of operation
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
million million million million million
Regal Real Estate Investment  Hong Kong 0.10% 7.03 2.91 0.54 10.43 (4.12) Hotels and hospitality-
Trust related properties
investment/Hong
Kong
iOne Holdings Limited Bermuda 0.83% 3.02 1.56 0.03 0.58 (1.46) Investment holding/
Hong Kong
Big Media Group Limited Cayman Islands 0.73% 13.65 17.20 = 0.40 3.55  Film, video, production

and sales and
copyright licensing/
Hong Kong

As at 31 December 2008, Group’s available-for-sale equity securities were individually determined to be

impaired on the basis of a prolonged decline in the fair value below cost. Impairment losses on these

investments were recognised in the income statement in accordance with the accounting policy set out in

note 3(h).

18. Other Asset

Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Golf club membership, at cost 150,000 150,000
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20.

For l:he year enc}ed 31 December 2008

Derivative Financial Instruments

Group
2008 2007
HK$ HK$
Foreign currency forward contract — 1,181,631
Details of the foreign currency forward contract is as below:
Principal amount Maturity Forward Exchange Rates
TRY1,373,000 From September 2007 to March 2008 Sell USD/buy TRY at USD1: TRY1.373
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Held for trading:
Equity securities, at fair value
— listed in Hong Kong 125,000 2,676,600
— listed outside Hong Kong (Note a) 112,125 —
237,125 2,676,600

Note:

(a) The equity securities listed outside Hong Kong are denominated in US dollars.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised as fair value gain

on the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated income statement.

Annual Report 2008 | 63



\ O

For the year ended 31 December 2008

21. Other Receivables

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
Other loans 25,915,813 30,452,000 — —
Less: impairment losses (Note 8) (14,962,813) — — —
Other loans (Note a) 10,953,000 30,452,000 — —
Prepayments and deposits 3,444,417 13,956,439 3,301,549 233,557
Others 14,318,275 6,150,000 — 6,150,000
28,715,692 50,558,439 3,301,549 6,383,557
Note:
(a) The aging analysis of the other loans are as follows:
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Within 3 months 10,018,000 20,350,000 — —
3 to 6 months 863,000 — — —
6 to 12 months 42,000 10,000,000 — —
Over 1 year 30,000 102,000 — —
10,953,000 30,452,000 — —

The other loans amounted to HK$10,953,000 (2007: HK$30,452,000) are

advanced to independent third

parties and are secured, interest bearing ranking from 10% per annum to prime lending rate less 1% per

annum.
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23.

For l:he year enc}ed 31 December 2008

Due from a Subsidiary — Company
The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and expected to be realized in the next twelve

months of the balance sheet date. Details of amount due from a subsidiary is as follows:

Maximum
amount

outstanding

during the Balance at  Balance at
Name of related company Connected directors year 31.12.2008 31.12.2007
GR Investment Holdings Limited Cheuk Yuk Lung and
Lam Kwing Wai 105,926,454 105,926,454 5,112,194

At the balance sheet date, there was no interest due or interest.
The carrying amount of amount due from a subsidiary approximates to its fair value.

Other Payables

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Accrued Expenses 337,780 1,789,061 331,300 252,766
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24. Interest-bearing Borrowings

Company
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Interest-bearing borrowing 6,064,618 —
Less: Current Portion (6,064,618) —

Non-current portion — —

The borrowing has no fixed repayment terms and chargeable with floating interest rate approximate from 3%

to 4% per annum.
25. Due to Sinox Fund Management Limited
The amount due to SINOX represents investment management fees payable at the year end. The amount due

is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

SINOX is the Investment Manager of the Group and provides administrative and investment management

services to the Group in relation to the investment of the Group’s assets.
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26. Share Capital

Number of shares Share capital
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note HKS$ HKS$
Authorised:
At beginning of the year
(ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each) 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000
Share consolidation (b) (2,700,000,000) — — —
At end of the year
(ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each) 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
At beginning of the year
(ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each) 647,928,000 431,952,000 6,479,280 4,319,520
Share option exercised (a) 50,000,000 — 500,000 —
Shares consolidation (b) (628,135,200) — — —
Issued on Open Offer (c) 34,896,400 215,976,000 3,489,640 2,159,760
Issued on share placing (d) 20,000,000 — 2,000,000 —
At end of the year
(ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each) 124,689,200 647,928,000 12,468,920 6,479,280

Note:

(a) On 8 January 2008, pursuant to the agreement entered into between China Investment Fund Company
Limited (“CIF”) and the Company on 17 August 2007 regarding the share option granted by the Company,
CIF has exercised the option to subscribe for 50,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.20
each. The premium on issue of shares in HK$9.5 million was credited to the share premium account. The
remaining subscription right for 36,000,000 shares (equivalent to 3,600,000 consolidated shares) are still
outstanding (note 28).

(b) By a special resolution passed on 26 February 2008, the issued and unissued share capital of the Company
has been consolidated for every ten shares of HK$0.01 each into one share of HK$0.10 each.

(c) After the share consolidation, the Company has made an Open Offer by issuing shares at a price of HK$1.00
per Open Offer Share. As a result, 34,896,400 shares of nominal value of HK$0.10 each were issued on
18 March 2008. The share premium amounting to HK$31,406,760 was credited to share premium account
accordingly (note 27).

(d) On 24 July 2008, the Company entered into a placing agreement with Baron Capital Limited for placing

20,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a price of HK$1.10 each. The premium on issue of shares in
HK$20 million was credited to the share premium account accordingly (note 27).
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27. Reserves

Changes in

fair value of

Exchange  available-for-

Share  Share Option Contributed fluctuation  sale financial Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve assets profits Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
Group

As at 1 January 2007 169,564,710 = 100,383,317 131,919 8,702,957 (34,007,728) 244,775,175

Increase in fair value of available-for-sale

financial assets — — — — 97,107,576 — 97,107,576
Realisation of change in fair value for

disposal of available-for-sale financial

assets — — - — (4,484111) — (4,484,111)
Premium arise from open offer — — 26,997,000 — — 26,997,000
Equity-settled share-based payment — 26,880,000 — — — — 26,880,000
Realisation of exchange fluctuation

reserve on disposal of an investment — — — (131,919) — — (131,919)
Profit for the year — — — — — 150,238,913 150,238,913
31 December 2007 169,564,710 26,880,000 127,380,317 — 101,326,422 116,231,185 541,382,634
As at 1 January 2008 169,564,710 26,880,000 127,380,317 — 101,326,422 116,231,185 541,382,634
Prior year adjustment

note 27 (a) 26,997,000 — (26,997,000) — — — —
At 1 January 2008, as restated 196,561,710 26,880,000 100,383,317 — 101,326,422 116,231,185 541,382,634
Decrease in fair value of available-for-

sale financial assets — — — — (196,886,391) — (196,886,391)

Realisation of change in fair value for

disposal of available-for-sale financial

assets — — — — 14,946,770 — 14,946,770
Premium arise from:

— exercise of share option

note 26(a) 9,500,000 — — — — — 9,500,000
— open offer note 26(c) 31,406,760 — — — — — 31,406,760
— share placing note 26(d) 20,000,000 — — — — — 20,000,000
Exercise of share option — (15,627,907) — — — — (15,627,907)
Reversal of reserve for share option — — 7,627,907 — — 7,627,907
Release on disposal and written off of
associates — — — — — 2,512 2,512
Loss for the year — — — — — (53,559,459) (53,559,459)
31 December 2008 257,468,470 11,252,093 108,011,224 — (80,613,199) 62,674,238 358,792,826
Company and subsidiaries 257,468,470 11,252,093 108,011,224 — (80,613,199) (104,083) 296,014,505
Associates — — — — — 62,778,321 62,778,321
257,468,470 11,252,093 108,011,224 — (80,613,199) 62,674,238 358,792,826

Notes:

(a) The prior year adjustment was recognised to correct the classification error made during 2007. The premium
arising from open offer by the amount of HK$26,997,000 should be adjusted from Contributed Surplus
Account to Share Premium Account, the opening balance was restated retrospectively.

(b) Movement of share option reserve and contribution surplus during the year represented the effect of
50,000,000 share options exercised by CIF (note 26(a)).
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27. Reserves (Continued)

Changes in

fair value of

available-for-

Share  Share option Contributed  sale financial Retained
premium reserve surplus assets profits Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Company

At 1 January 2007 3,237,490 — 100,383,317 866,267 864,904 105,351,978

Increase in fair value of available-for-

sale financial assets — — — 71,181,131 — 71,181,131
Realisation of change in fair value

for disposal of available-for-sale

financial assets — — — 250,583 — 250,583
Premium arise from open offer — — 26,997,000 - — 26,997,000
Equity-settled share-based payment — 26,880,000 — — — 26,880,000
Profit for the year — — — — 19,868,392 19,868,392
31 December 2007 3,237,490 26,880,000 127,380,317 72,297,981 20,733,296 250,529,084
At 1 January 2008 3,237,490 26,880,000 127,380,317 72,297,981 20,733,296 250,529,084
Prior year adjustment note 27(a) 26,997,000 — (26,997,000) - — —
At 1 January 2008, as restated 30,234,490 26,880,000 100,383,317 72,297,981 20,733,296 250,529,084
Decrease in fair value of available-for-

sale financial assets — — — (37,135,256) — (37,135,256)
Premium arise from:

— exercise of share option

note 26(a) 9,500,000 — — — — 9,500,000

— open offer note 26(c) 31,406,760 — — — — 31,406,760

— share placing note 26(d) 20,000,000 — — - - 20,000,000
Exercise of share option — (15,627,907) — — — (15,627,907)
Reversal of reserve for share option — — 7,627,907 — — 7,627,907
Loss for the year — — — - (4,276,831) (4,276,831)
31 December 2008 91,141,250 11,252,093 108,011,224 35,162,725 16,456,465 262,023,757

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganization scheme completed on 12

December 2001 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange.

Under the Companies Act (1981) of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, provided that the Company is, after the payment of dividends out of the contributed surplus,
able to pay its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby

not be less than the aggregate of its liabilities, issued share capital and reserves.
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28. Share-based Payment Transactions

Equity-settled share option scheme:

The Company had entered into an agreement with China Investment Fund Company Limited (“CIF”) on 17
August, 2007 for acquiring 80,000,000 new shares of CIF at HK$0.276 with an aggregate consideration
of HK$22,080,000 and the Company had agreed to grant an option to CIF for the subscription of up
to a maximum of 86,000,000 new shares of the Company at HK$0.20 per share with an aggregate
subscription price of HK$17,200,000 of which 80% will be regarded as an option money and a payment of
HK$8,320,000 in cash. The option is exercisable within an option period of two years starting from the date

of granting of the option on 4 September 2007.

On 8 January 2008, pursuant to the agreement with CIF regarding the share option granted by the Company,
CIF has exercised the option to subscribe for 50,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.2
each. The premium on issue of shares of HK$9.5 million was credited to the share premium account. The
remaining subscription right for 36,000,000 shares (equivalent to 3,600,000 consolidated shares) remains

outstanding.
On 14 March 2008, the Company announced that the subscription price for CIF outstanding share options
was adjusted from HK$0.20 per share to HK$0.1739 per share (HK$1.739 per consolidated share) with effect

from 18 March, 2008 as a result of the above mentioned share consolidation and open offer.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related subscription price are as follows:

Subscription price HK$0.1739 per share
Date of grant 4 September 2007
Date of expiry 3 September 2009
Date of exercise 8 January 2008

2008

No of share options

Granted 86,000,000
Forfeited —
Exercised 50,000,000
Expired —
At 31 December 2008 3,600,000

(Consolidated shares)
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28. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)
The fair value of the share option granted was measured with reference to the market price of CIF’ shares at

the transaction date.

29. Net Asset Value Per Share

Net asset value per share is computed based on:

Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Net assets 371,261,746 547,861,914
Number of ordinary shares 124,689,200 647,928,000

30. Operating Lease Commitments
At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Within one year — 40,800

In the second to fifth year inclusive — —

—_ 40,800
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31. Related Party Transactions
Apart form the transactions with related parties disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following transactions were entered into by the Group with the related parties negotiated on terms mutually

agreed with these related parties:

(a) Group
2008 2007
HKS$ HK$
Management fees paid to a Company with a common director 5,400,000 3,829,827
Commission fees paid to a Company with a common shareholder 477,938 341,731

Apart form the transactions with related parties disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
following transactions were entered into by the Company with the related parties negotiated on terms

mutually agreed with these related parties:

(b) Company

2008 2007
HK$ HK$
Management fees received from subsidiaries 5,188,287 2,240,439
Management fees paid to a Company with a common director 5,400,000 3,829,827
Administrative fees paid to a subsidiary 871,378 161,923
Commission fees paid to a Company with a common shareholder 477,938 341,731
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32. Contingent Liabilities
Legal claim
On 14 March, 2008, a subsidiary of the Group namely “GR Investment Holdings Limited” received a
court order (HCA 2032/2007) for hearing on 15 April, 2009 for a dispute with an agent “Golden Eagle
International (Group) Ltd” in connection with a claim for a balance of unsettled agency commission
amounted to RMB12,750,000 regarding the provision of agency services in procuring the sales of investment,

namely “Shanghai White Cat Company Ltd” during the year 2000.

The Company defended for counter claim for a sum of RMB7,324,564 for the failure of the agent to
discharge its obligations before expiry date under an Agency Agreement. The directors are of the opinions
that it is not probable for the subsidiary be liable to the claim based on the legal advice and no provision

has therefore been make in respect of this claim. The legal fee is estimated to be HK$790,000.

33. Subsequent Event
After the year ended 31 December 2008, two Equity Linked Note contracts have been exercised by the
investment banks and the Group acquired shares at the contracted strike price. Accordingly, the Group has

further recognized an unrealised loss of HK$8,085,798 as at the contract exercised date.

34. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
Cash at bank and in hand 5,663,864 721,345 155,233 305,655
Cash with brokers 30,962,280 10,008,519 697 815,261
Short term bank deposits 41,214,099 119,231,357 28,406,647 70,884,227

77,840,243 129,961,221 28,562,577 72,005,143

The average interest rate on short term bank deposits was approximately 3% (2007: approximately 3.5%);

these deposits are mature within 31 days.
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35. Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue

as a going concern and to maintain healthy equity ratio in order to support its business and maximize

shareholder’s value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic

conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may consider to make dividend payment

to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares by way of open offer. No changes were

made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December

2007.

Capital is monitored on the basis of the equity ratio, which is calculated as being equity as a percentage

of total assets. This is reported to senior management as part of the Group’s regular internal management

reporting. The Group's capital and equity ratio are shown in the table below.

Group
2008 2007
HK$ HK$

(in thousand) (in thousand)

Capital (note 26) 12,468 6,479
Reserves (note 27) 358,792 541,382
Total equity 371,260 547,861
Total assets (i) 381,705 554,357
Equity ratio 97% 98%
(i) Total assets include all non-current assets and current assets of the Group.

74 | Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited



c ALC[[]C]]
For the year ended 31 December 2008
36. Financial Risk Management
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bonds, equity link notes, equity instrument, derivative
financial instruments which are classified into four categories and including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivable, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial
assets. The objective of the Group is to achieve medium to long-term capital growth through investing in

the financial assets.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are market risk (including foreign currency
risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees

policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized as below.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The Group holds assets (both monetary and non-monetary) in form of bonds, equity link notes,
fixed deposits and equity investment which are denominated in foreign currency, such as Australia
dollars (AUD), US dollar (USD), New Turkish Lira (TRY) and Renminbi (RMB) respectively. It is therefore
exposed to currency risk as the value of the financial instruments denominated in other currencies
that will fluctuate due to the changes in exchanges rates. The investment manager is responsible for
managing the net position of the monetary and non-monetary positions in each foreign currency by

hedging against forward contracts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
2008 2007 2008 2007
AUD 7,002,480 — — —
usb 72,976,550 54,061,390 6,064,618 —
TRY 15,727,270 — — —
RMB 17,120 19,260 — —
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36. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

In addition, the following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet date, to a reasonable

possible change in the exchange rates of AUD, USD, TRY and RMB, with all other variables held

constant, of the Group’s net profit or loss (due to the changes in the fair value of monetary assets

and liabilities).
Increase/
decrease Effect on
in foreign  (loss)/profit
currency rate after tax
AUD
2008 +5% 12,247
-5% (12,247)
2007 +5% Nil
-5% Nil
usD
2008 +5% 400,566
-5% (400,566)
2007 +5% 472,966
-5% (472,966)
TRY
2008 +5% 16,747
-5% (16,747)
2007 +5% Nil
-5% Nil
RMB
2008 +5% Nil
-5% Nil
2007 +5% 1,580,076
-5% (1,580,076)
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36. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(b)  Price risk
The Group is exposed to price risk through its investment in listed equity securities. It has been
classified in the consolidated balance sheet either at available-for-sale financial assets or as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities operating in banking, financial services, media, property investment
and hotel industry sectors listed in Hong Kong and The United States of America. The investment

team on regular basis monitors the performance of investment portfolio.

As at the year ended date, the total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are shown as

follows:

Fair value
2008 2007
Financial assets held for trading
Listed securities 237,125 2,676,600
Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss — —
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 237,125 2,676,600

To ensure that a reasonable spread of investments is maintained, the Group's investment restrictions
prohibits it from investing the value of its holding of investments shall not exceeding 20% of the
Group's net assets value at the time when the investment decision is made. The Group has a treasury

team to comply with this fulfillment.

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group’s fair value interest rate risk related primarily to floating rate borrowings from a financial
institution (note 24). It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate interest so as to
minimize the fair value interest rate risk. The Group has continually maintained certain amount of time

deposit at bank to hedge against its exposures to interest rate risk.
Other than the above, the Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial

liabilities are not significant. The investment team monitors and reviews the overall interest sensitivity

of the Group’s assets and liabilities on regular basis.
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36.

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Derivative counterparties and cash
transactions are limited to high-credit-quality financial institutions. The Group has policies that limit
the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution and transacts only with recognised and

creditworthy third parties.

The Group regards the maximum credit risk exposure limited to the loan due from the associated
companies and other receivables, approximately to the carrying value of HK$6 million (2007: 6
million) and HK$28 million (2007: 50 million) respectively. In order to minimize the credit risk, the
management has implemented strict control over the outstanding amounts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at each balance sheet date and ensure that
adequate impairment are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk
The Group continued to enjoy a strong financial position at the end of 2008, the cash and cash
equivalents amounting to HK$77 million (2007: 129 million). It includes the time deposits in an

amount approximated to HK$41 million.

The Group aims to monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and investment commitments and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. As at 31 December 2008, the Group has entered into an arrangement of
currency exchange spot, it borrowed an US dollar interest-bearing against the pledge of TRY deposit
for an amount of HK$6,064,618 and HK$15,727,271 respectively. Other than these, the Group has no
other bank borrowing (2007: Nil).
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36. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the balance

sheet date, based on the contractual undiscounted payments.

Group
2008
3 to less
Less than 3 than 12
On demand months months to 5 years Total
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
Other payables 337,780 — — — 337,780
Interest-bearing
borrowings 6,064,618 — — — 6,064,618
Due to Sinox Fund
Management
Limited 240,404 — — — 240,404
Provision for
taxation 3,801,980 — — — 3,801,980
10,444,782 — —_ — 10,444,782
2007
Less than 3 3 to less than
On demand months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Other payables 1,789,061 — — — 1,789,061
Due to Sinox Fund
Management
Limited 648,821 — — — 648,821
Provision for
taxation 4,057,860 — — — 4,057,860
6,495,742 — — — 6,495,742
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36. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(f) Fair value
The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined
by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is market price quoted in the stock exchange market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include the using of recent arm’s length market
transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially of the
same nature, a discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants. Due to inherent uncertainty of valuations, however, estimated
fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used has a readily available
market for the securities existed and the differences could be material. In case where the carry

amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value, no additional fair value is disclosed.

37. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant

effect on carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as follows:

(a) Estimated impairment of receivables
The Company records impairment of receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and prepayments, deposits and other receivables. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the directors’ estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying values of the trade receivables and prepayment, deposits and other

receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the period in which such estimates have been changed.

(b) Impairment test of assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in such case, the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.
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37. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Continued)
(c)  Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments
As described in note 15 and 17, the directors use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. The Group’s unlisted equity instruments with carrying
amount of HK$11.7 million (2007: HK$12 million) are valued using a discounted cash flow analysis
based on assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market prices or rates, The estimation
of fair value of these equity instruments also includes some assumptions not supported by observable

market prices or rates.
38. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements on page 19 to 81 were approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors
on 23 March 2009.
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
Results
Profit/(loss) for the year (3,784,094) (7,924,759) 9,673,788 150,238,913  (53,559,459)
Assets and liabilities
Total assets 253,991,023 258,551,037 264,270,410 554,357,656 381,706,528
Total liabilities (19,375,837)  (24,188,899) (15,175,715) (6,495,742) (10,444,782)
Net assets 234,615,186 234,362,138 249,094,695 547,861,914 371,261,746

82 | Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited



	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Message from the Chairman
	Management’s Statement
	Director’s Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Financial Summary


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /MHeiHK-Bold
    /MHeiHK-Light
    /MHeiHK-Medium
    /MHeiHKS-Bold
    /MHeiHKS-Light
    /MHeiHKS-Medium
    /MHeiHKS-Xbold
    /MHeiHK-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 100
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [595.276 841.890]
>> setpagedevice


